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The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financicl statements ond auditors’ report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025. The annual repert serves the purposes of both ¢ Trustees’
report and a directors’ report under company low.

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 16 serving o catchment area in Bolton. In agreement with the local
authority, it is increasing its intake yeor on year to reach pupil capacity of 1250 and had a roll of 1231 at the 2025

autumn school census.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The Academy Trust is a charitable company fimited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company’s Trust deed scheme of delegation is the primary governing document of the Academy Trust.

The Trustaes of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law.

The charitable company is known as The Bolton Multi Academy Trust,

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and adminisirative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be @ member.

¢. Trustees’ indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense to cover liability of Trustees by
virtue of any rule of law which would otherwise aitach to them in respect of any negligence, defauit, breach of trust or
breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust.

This insurcnce does nect extend to any claim arising from any act or omissicn which the Trustees know to be o breach of
duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckless regard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of duty or

not.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continuved)

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The recruitment and appointment ¢f the Trustees of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust are set out in the articles of
association. Appropriate individuals are identified based on their skills and experience in the education sector or other
areas that would add volue to the Academy Trust.

Trusteeship shal! terminate automatically, if:

. Atrustee dles or becomes incapable by reason of mental disorder, iliness or injury of managing his own offairs
. A trustee becomes insolvent

e. Policies adopted for the induction ond training of Trustees

Persons who are appointed os Trustees will be party to on induction process determined by their experience,
background and knowledge of The Bolton Multi Acodemy Trust and its schoal. The board of Trustees, are subject to
relevant fraining to ensure that they are compliant with the policies, procedures and expectotions of The Bolton Multi
Academy Trust, and are oware of thelr roles and responsibilities.

The Trustees have full access to 'The Key for Governance’ on fine service, which provides in depth information tailored
to their needs and Governor Training Services available via the service level agreement with the local cuthority.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees is responsitle for the strategic direction of the Academy Trust. It maokes major policy decisions,
sets key policies, adopting the school development plon, approving and maonitoring the budget, as well as monitoring
the academy’s educational performance.

The Board of Trustees normally meets three times a year and has met four times in 2024/25. As the Risk and Audit
Committee, Resources and Finance Committee and Standards Committee are also an agende item at the Academy
Trust board meetings and reports are provided ot both the Finance meeting and the full Trust board, it fulfits the ESFA
requirement of six meetings a year, {as stated in the Academy Trust Handbook).

The board establishes an overall framework for governance and determines membership, terms of reference ond
procedures of commitiees.

The Board of Trustees of the Academy trust receives reports from Smithills School for monitering and ratification. It
monitors the activitizs of Smithills through scruting of committee meetings, termiy reports from the Hecdteacher,
including progress towards targets and schoo! visits as appropriate.

In 2024/2025 the three main sub committees are Risk and Audit Committee, Standards Cornmittee and Resources and
Finonce Committee. Key performance indicators have been agreed by all committees which met at least termly.

The Risk and Audit Committee of the Academy Trust Board is authorised to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference or specifically delegated to it by the Board. It considers and assists the Board in fulfilling its respansibilities for
corporate governance and overseeing the company's financial reporting. It reviews on risk management systems and
reporting; os well as taking the lead, directing Internal scruting and external audit functions.

The Standards Committee reviews academy performance, focusing on educational assessment of teaching ond
learning.

The Resources and Finance Committee receives management accounts and is responsible for monitoring, evaluating
and reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management, personnel and premises management,
including health and safety. It opproves the budget for submission to the trustees, ensuring complianee with reporting
and regulatory requirements.

The trustees have ultimate authority for setting poy and remuneration for all staff including key personnel. No trustee
receives any pay or remuneration for discharging their duties as an officer to the company. The school has an internai
performance managemeant policy with tesching stoff and teaching assistents complete a Personal Development
Question {(PDQ) based on whole school priorities. In addition, individual targets based on individual observations may
aiso be set.

The Accounting Officer and CFO are respensible for authorisation of spending within ogreed budgets as detailed in the
scheme of delegation. The Headteacher is responsible for the appointment of staff, through appointment panels which
may include a Trustee.
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The Bolton Muilti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (Continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Performance Mancgement of all senior staff is based on agreed objectives. The Hecdteacher's Perfarmance
Manogement is conducted by the Pay ond Appraisal Committee made up of representatives of the Academy Trust and
an external advisor. The Headteacher then has delegated powers to oversee the Performance Management of other
members of the Senior Leadership Team and all staff and makes her recommendations to the pay panel for approval.

The Headteacher's salary is determined by the Heodteacher's Performance Management Panel in line with the
outcomes of the Performance Monagement cycle. The pay is benchmarked against similar sizec organisations and kept
under review.

Key management pay is reviewed annudlly, in line with the provisions of the School Teachers' Pay and Condition
Document and jointly advised by the teaching unions. The Academy Trust poy scales are based on the National Pay
Scales for Teachers and Local Pay scales for Support staff and predominantly follows the Local Authority policies for
staff pay and conditions.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevent union officials during the year 2
Full-time equivalent employee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% 2

1%-50% -

51%-99% -

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total cost of facility time 500

Total pay bill 6,919,158

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours - %
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
for the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims
The Bolton Multi Academy Trust's vision is “Success for Al which is underpinned by our three core values: Independence,

Community and Excellence, these are actively promoted within school and the wider community. Our objectives for the
24/25 academic year are detailed below, along with progress and impact.

The curriculum is sequenced 35 a progression model in all subject areas, with key companent krowledge that builds
ant i delivered using our pedagogical principles, {C)

Teachers' use of assessment strategies pinpoint precisely any gaps in puplls’ understanding and purposefully reshape
future iearning to address pupils’ misconceptions, (A}

High quality assessment systems (formative and summative} are designed to chock whether puplis have leared the
component knpwiedge that is defined in the currculum and know and remember more. {A)

Quality of Education

The reading curricuium promates a litelong love of reading and develops pupils” ability to engapge with distiphinary
toxts affecnvely, Swift and effectve support enables pupils to catch up with thair reading knowledge. (R)

there is a fansistent appraach ta the development of & kind, compassionate and fair calture, rocted in relational

Behaviour and Atfitudes
practice. (8)
Leadership and Every toachar possesses effective compenent and pedagegical knowladge to design activities that help pupds to learn
Management the intendad carricutum. (€}

Following an Ofsted menitoring visit in October 24, we received one area for improvement, highlighted in boid above.
Below are the actions taken, thelr impact, and how they relate to this AFl as well as our breader objectives.

AFl: Assessment: The coaching trial has been positively received, helping teachers enhance thelr formative assessment
strategies where this was o deveiopment focus. Pupil voice indicates that these strategies are effective, with students
demaonstrating improved retention of content compared to before. Work scruting shows thot misconceptions are being
identified and addressed promptly and effectively, a trend also reflected in written corrective feedback (WCF). Subject-
tevel quality assurance confirms thot formative assessment strategies are working successfully in the majority of
lessons observed. Additionally, middle leader meetings and professicnal development sessions focused on formative
assessment and responding to misconceptions have driven improvemnents, as evidenced by Steplab steps and lesson
QA outcomes.

In 2024-725. the school made sustained and measurable progress gcross its strategic priorities, leading to Clear
improvements in staff development, overall provision, and pupil cutcomes in some subjects.

Al staff, across all subject areas, received comprehensive phonics training delivered by external advisers, This has
increased confidence and skill in embedding reading strategies across the curriculum. Pupils with reading difficulties,
including those with SEND, are now swiftly identified and effectively supported, enabling rapid cotch-up. Investment in
the fibrary and high-quclity texts has boosted engagement in reading for pleasure, with pupil voice reflecting
enthusiasm, porticularly during tutor-led sessions. Ofsted's monitoring report (October 2024) praised these
developments, highlighting a positive cultural shift arcund reading.

Curriculum and assessment reforms have hod a demonstrable impact. Robust curriculum frameworks and refined
ossessment practices over the past 18 months have ensured key knowledge is consistently reinforced in lessons,
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guorantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continued)

Formative ossessment is now embedded across the school, reflected in improved knowledge retention and
understanding. Progress 8 outcomes show significant improvement in some subjects, supported by internal data and
book scruting demonstrating better sequencing, deeper learning, and stronger progress where improvements have
been implemented.

Pastoral provision has been significantly strengthened, with a focus on embedding a trauma-informed approach. Staff
have received specialist training to understand the impact of trauma on behaviour, learning, and emctional regulation,
resulting in more empathetic, proactive responses and improved relationships. Implementotion of trauma-informed
strategies—including consistent routines, predictable consequences, and relational practice-~has contributed to a
calmer environment, reduced behavioural incidents, and better engagement from vulnerable pupils. Attendance has
improved, exclusions have declined, and the number of pupils accessing early help services has increased, reflecting
eorly identification and effective support.

wider pastoral support has expanded to meet increasingly complex pupil needs. Enhanced targeted services, stronger
collaboration with external agencies, and improved parental engagement have led to better attendance, reduced

persistent absence, and more positive feedback from pupils and families.

A culture of excellence and ambition continues to drive schocl practice. The commitment to "Success for All' is evident in
strategic decision-making and daily proctice. Staff demonstrote o relentless drive for improvement, ond outcomes are
improving in subjects where reforms have been fully embedded. Ofsted’s monitoring visit confirmed that the school is
on the right path, highlighting the strength of the curriculum and assessment strategy. This validation has boosted staff
confidence and motivation, while further inspiring pupils to achieve their best.

In summary, 2024-25 saw the school consolidate and build upon its core priarities, achieving measurable impact across
staff development, pastoral support, and pupil outcomes in some subjects. Next steps will focus on sustaining progress,
centinuing 1o close gaps for disadvantaged pupils, and further embedding trauma-informed proctice to ensure every
child feels safe, valued, and able to thrive.

in 2024/25, Bolton Multi-Academy Trust remained a single-school academy, which allowed the school to continue
developing and embedding its own distinctive culture, ethos, vision, and values. These remain central to the day-to-day
life of the school and underpin all aspects of teaching, learning, and pastoral support.

Throughout the year, the school has actively collaborated with Bolten Learning Alliance and a number of local school
leaders, particularly through the North Cluster of Bolton heads. It has clso maintained strong partnerships with other
schools, sharing good practice and contributing to o mutually beneficial network thot supports continuous improvement

across the local area.

Additionally, the schoaol has recently joined a multi-academy trust, Bolton Impact Trust (BIT), opening new opportunities
for coliaboration, professional development, and shered resources, which will further strengthen provisien and

outcomes for pupils.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Principal activity of the charitable company is the operation of Smithills School, which provides education of pupils
of different abilities aged between 11 and 16.

The overarching objectives are:

« To enhance the life opportunities of every young person
e To ensure each individual attains the highest possible qualifications, preparing them for further education and

future careers,
+ To maintain a continuous commitment to growth and improvement.

¢. Public benefit

when exercising their powers and duties, the Trustees of The Bolton Mufti Academy Trust have had due regard to the
guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission.

we encourage staff and puplls to consider the contribution that they can make to their community and actively
encourage cpporunities to develop their capacity to do so.

In additien to the education of our pupils, the Academy Trust operates a Sport Centre for the benefit of the local
community, our own staff and other local schools.

d. Strategic report

To ensure the Academy Trust board fulfils its stotutory duty, respensibility is devolved, and the organisation held to
account by the Chair. The Bolton Multi Academy Trust has separate sub committees - Risk and Audit, Standards and
Resources ond Finance ond o standolone pay end appraisal committee, each of which have o clear set of
responsibilities as laid out in the Terms of Reference.

To enable monitoring and challenge, Trustees have established targets which are reviewed at each committee meeting
and reported to the full board. In eddition, Business Cycles for all committees ensure all statutory duties are carried out
and school leaders held to account far the performance of the school.

Pocge &
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Achievements and performance

The 2024-25 resuits show an improving picture in some subjects compared with both last year's results and national
outcomes. However, overall performance, particularly in English, Maths, and Science, was below expectations. A
strategic plan is in place to address these areas, building on the progress made over the previous academic year in
curriculum development and assessment practices—both formative and summative. These reforms cre ensuring thot
pupils know and remember more, particularly in Key $tage 3, as evidenced by recent GL assessment results.

we have maintained g strong focus on high aspirations for ali pupils, encouraging hard work and the delief that effort is
its own reward. By significantly expanding owr pasteral offer and embedding o culture of structure, routines, high
standaords, positive relationships, and trouma-informed practice, we ore seeing ¢ tangible positive impact on school
culture. This is reflected in improved engagement, behaviour, and overall climate within the school and is evidenced by
external recognition, including the Local Authority Sofeguarding Audit, the Inclusion Quality Mark (IQM) awaord,
designation as a Centre of Excellence, and the SMSC Gold Award. These accolades reflect the school's commitment to a
safe, inclusive, and supportive envirenment where pupils can thrive academically, socially, end emaoticnally.

A continued focus on reading across the school has had a measurable impact. Initiatives such as the Reading for
Pleasure curriculum, targated interventions, and the promotion of reading at home have improved pupils’ reading ages,
increased confidence, and ensured that most pupils are reading at or above their chronological age. These strategies
have also contributed to a culture of literacy that underpins learning across all subjects.

Pupiis have benefited from o wide range of cultural experiences, broadening their horizons, boosting self-esteem, and
equipping them with the skills and confidence to contribute positively to society. Wellbeing remains o high priority,
supported through assemblies, bespoke interventions, and reading initiatives, all of which promote resilience. self-
confidence, and engagement.

Staff collaboration continues to be excellent. Teachers and support staft work closely together, sharing best practice,
supporting ane ancther, and embedding school priorities across the curriculum and pastoral provision. New initiatives
have been successfully introduced to enhance staff wellbeing, ensuring that colleagues feel valued, supported, and
motivated. This focus on professional development and wellbeing strengthens the school's culture and enables staff to
deliver the highest quality education to pupils.

Page 10



Docusign Envelope [D: CB29DE6GC-FC80-47C8-BDE9-0BDODBFC2ES3

The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Achievements and performance (continued)

a. Key performance indicators

Qutcomes for 2024/25

Results Analysis

SEATTHILLS SMITERILLS
2004725 025/28
Exam Exam
Resuits Ruesuls
%
9.7 in English & Miaths {Basic} i Attainment BfProgress B 36,54
9.5 in Engfish & &Aaths {Basic 20 Attzinment 8 Grade - English 447
9.4 in English & Maths {Basic) 27 Attainment 8 Grade - Maths z.32
9-7 in Engfish {Core) g Antsinment 8 Grade - Ebate 3.75
9.7 in Maths {{ore) g Attainment B Grade - Open 2,48
9.5 %0 Enplish {Care] 4B
8.5 in Maths {{ore) 22
8.4 in English {Core) 64
54 in taths {lore} 51
E. Baccataureate {Sirong pass) 7
£. Batcataureate (Standard pass) 18

The Attainment 8 figure was below 2024 results, and 2025 Dota Entry 3 predictions, the jargest arec where there
was a dip was in mathematics.

The Atteinment 8 Grade in English was slightly higher than 2024 results, due to improvements in English Literature.
The performance at the 7+ grades was lower than 2024 results (in English, mathematics and, subsequently, the
match).

Grade 5+ in mathematics was the areg where there was the largest regression from 2024 results.

Grade 5+ in English increased by 3%.

The Attainment 8 Grade in Ebacc was lower than 2024 by 0.34.

The Attainment 8 Grade in Open was lower by 0.3

The vocational subjects, generally. performed better than 2024 results, with improvements in cll subjects, apart
from Animal Care and Digital IT.

Predictions were accurcte, in the majority of areas.

2024-25, overcll attendonce waos 90.3%, slightly below the nctional averoge by 1%. However, attendance for
disadvantaged pupils, those receiving SEND support, and pupils with EHCPs was above the national average, reflecting
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Achievements and performance {continued)

the effectiveness of targeted support strategies.

b. Going concern

Following approval from the Secretary of State for Education, on 1 September 2025 the school within The Bolton Multi
Academy Trust formally jeined The Bolton Impact Trust, @ Multi Academy Trust incorporated In England and Wales. On
the some day, the activities, ossets and liobilities of The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust were transferred to The Bolton
Impact Trust and this academy trust become dormant. These financial statements have therefore been prepared on o
basis other than geing concarn. No adjustmenits to the carrying value of the assets and liabilities, prior to the transfer,
were required as a result of this basis of preparation.

Financial review

The Academy's key resources of funding are the General Annual Grant (GAG) and Pupil Premium from the Department
for Education. Funding from the DfE Is shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the year t¢ 31 August 2025, the Acaderny Trust received GAG of £8,786,800, Pupll Premium of £526,652 in
addition to other sources of income. The Academy Trust also received capital grants of £24,081 during the year and had
to repaid unspent CIF income of £56,718. During the year to 31 August 2025, total resources expended are £10,129,345
excluding depreciation and LGPS pension costs. Depreciation of £639,179 has been charged during the year against the
fixed asset fund.

The academy has no funds that ore in deficit.

a. Reserves policy

The company is not currently income generating and it therefore unlikely to build up significant reserves. Any surpius
funding generoted through efficiencies will be reinvested into projects to support the school.

The ievel of reserves required is reviewed annually by the Board of Trustees and informs the preparction of the annual
budget. The required and forecast levels of reserves are submitted to the Board for approval via the Resources and
Finance Committee.

Overall reserves remain within agreed target levels. From the reserves the company is holding, trustess have approved
provision for a permanent pertacabin / modular building on site to accornmadate an internal alternative provision. This
wos commissioned in 2024-25 and will continue into 2025-26.

At the year end the trust held total reserves of £11,864,035 comprising unrestricted funds of £637,660 restricted funds
(excluding pension reserve) of £1,504,785, pension surplus of £nil and restricted fixed asset funds of £9,721.590.
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The Bolton Multi Academuy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

b. Investment policy

In the event of the company building up excess cash balances, these will be invested in line with the Academy Trusts
charitable objectives. Trustees will take into account social, environmental and ethical considerations when making any
investments. At all times Trustees will be aware that this is public money and intended tc improve the life chances and
educational outcomes of young pecple. Should investment be made, the trustees will adopt o low risk strategy to any

cash holding.
No investments are currently held.
c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The trustees have assessed the major risks to school, in particular those reloting te teaching, child protection, health and
safety. finances and facilities management. These risks are reviewed on an on going basis by the Senior Leadership
Team.

The internal financial systems are based on the Acedemy Trust Handbook. The Companies Act requires disclosure of
principal risks and uncertainties facing o company. The Bolten Multi Academy Trust is exposed 1o a number of risks
including credit, cash flow and liquidity risks. Given the academy trust's exposure to financial instruments being limited,
the exposure principally relates to bank balonces, cash and trade credits with limited trade and other debtors. The
academy trust’s system of internal control ensures that risk is minimal in these areas. These systems and controls are
discussed regularly by Trustees,

The academy has a robust risk management framework with a risk and audit committee meeting termiy reporting to
the full board. Major risks tc which the academy is exposed are contained in o separate risk register, which is informed
by the school development plan.

Fundraising

School does not work with professional fundraisers, but self generctes a small income from community letting of its
sports centre and swimming pool. Any profits made are re invested to maintain and improve the focilities school offers.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

Plans for future periods
The LGB and Bolton Impact Trust will continue to strengthen Leadership and Management of Smithills School by:

+ Establishing ¢lear and robust performance management objectives for the Headteacher.

+ Employing a School Improvement Partner (SIP) to support the Hecdteacher in setting and monitoring the strategic
direction of the school.

s Providing strong support to the Headteacher to ensure effective leadership ond strategic oversight.

s Ensuring high-quality teaching and learning through ongoing curriculum development and review to meet the
diverse needs of all pupils.

s Chalienging leaders to maintain effective systems of accountability that pesitively impact teaching quality and pupil
progress.

s Empowering ali staff to meet teacher standards through targeted training, coaching, and oppropricte support and
challenge.

+ Strengthering the academy by recruiting additional expertise and copacity.

s Developing middle leaders, increasing the number of Speciclist Leaders of Education (SLEs), and supporting staff in
undertaking National Professional Qualifications (NPQs).

e Embeadding the school's vision ond values so they are reflected consistently across the Academy.

e  Pricritising the wellbeing of staff and pupils in all strategic decision-making.

e Supporting the implementation and quality assurance of whele-schooi priorities for 2025-26.

Curricelum: Dur ambitious carriculurn is driven by expert teaching that adapts o support;
a1l punils 1o sweceed. (C€)

Assessment: Teachers' use of assessment strategies pinpeint precisely any gaps in pupiks’
Quafity of Education mderstanding and purposefully reshape future lzarning to address pupils’
iSCONLEptions. (A)

i fleracy: Disciplinary Lteracy develops pupils’ subjectspecific reading, extended writing,
and oracy skills to support effective communication threughout school and beyond. (1)

[ehayiour and Attitudes: There is 3 consistent, whale-schoo! gppraach to the
Behaviour and Attitudes evelopment of a king, compassionate, and fair culture, rooted in relational practice and
reinforced through routines, [8)

English and Maths: There is a sharp focus en raising sttairment (n English and Maths,

Leadership and Management sffering all pupils the opportunity 1o improve their life chances. {E}

The priorities outlined above provide the framework for the Trust's work this year, with the overorching focus being
Year 11 cutcomes.

Page 14



Docusign Envelope ID: CB29DE6GC-FC80-47C8-BDEY-O0BDODBFC2ES3

The Bolton Multi Acaderny Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Plans for future periods (continued)

All leadership, management, and school improvement activities are ultimately aimed at ensuring that pugils in Year M
achieve their full potenticl. This includes improving progress and aitainment across key subjects, clesing gaps for pupils
with SEND and disadvantaged pupils, and ensuring that teaching, assessment, and pasteral support ere aligned to meet
the specific needs of this cohort.

By concentrating on Yeor 11 outcomes, the Trust and schoo! leadership can drive sustained improvement, ensuring that
every pupil Is equipped with the knowledge, skills, and cenfidence to succeed both academically end personally.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are awaore:

. there is no relevant avdit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they cught to have taken to moke themselves aware of any relevant audit
informaticn and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 11 December 2025
and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
GMAL Ho,lﬁ&iwsom,

EZ4E2094BS1F405..,
P E Hodgkinson
Chair of Trustees
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Belton Multi Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to menage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, ond can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matericl misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed ond token account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbock and competency
fromework for governance.

The Boord of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Trust CEQ, as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financicl management and in accordance
with the requirements and respensibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Bolton Multi Academy
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internat control,
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continved)

Governaonce

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Boord of Trustees has formaily met 4 times during the year.

Altendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of o possible

M W Crossley

C Dewse

| Carter

D J Docherty

P F Hodgkinson, Chair of Trustees
R Lecnard

S ™M Ouyen

C Beswick

K McGuire

L Guest

MNORN W AN D DA Db
[T N RN N . T T - N S - Y

The board maintains effective oversight in fewer than é meeting annually through the use of o subcommittee structure,
including the Risk and Audit Committee, Standards Commitiee, and Resources ond Finance Committee, each of which
meet at least 3 times annually.

The Risk and Audit committee is a subcommittee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to ensure the Board of
Trustees gain the assurance they need on governance and risk management. As well as considering alt elements of risk,
the committee is responsibie for leading the school qudit process - including appointment of auditors, direction of
internal scruting and the integrity of the financial statements and accounts produced.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continved)

Governance {continued)

The Risk and Audit Committea met 3 times during the year. Mrs R Leonard is Chair of the Risk and Audit Committee
attendance is as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
M W Crossley 2 3
| Carter 2 3
R Leonard 3 3
P Hodgkinsen 3 3
C Dewse (as Heodtecher and Accounting Officer) 3 3
C Beswick 2 2

The Standards committee is g subcommittee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to rapid improve educationol
progress for all students ond all groups of students at Smithills School.

Ms § Oyen, is @ HMI inspector and is Chair of the Standards committee. The committee is also supported by two head
teachers whao sit on the committes as well as the Chair of the Trust.

The Standards commiitee has met 4 times during the year and attendance is as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

50yen

P Hodgkinson

D Docherty

C Dewse (as Headteacher and Accounting Officer)
C Bewswick

L Guest

K McGuire

Lo SRR O A R N N
e . T S -

The Resources and Finance committee is o subcommittee of the main Board of Trustees. Mr | Carter chairs the
Rescurces and Finance Committee. Its purpose is to assist the decision making of the Beord, by enabling more detailed
consideration to be given to the best means of fulfiling its responsibility to ensure sound management of the Academy
Trusts finances and resources, including budget planning, monitoring and probity.

The Resources and Finance committee has met 3 times during the year and attendance is as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
MW Crossley 3 3
C Dewse 3 3
| Carter 3 3
C Beswick 2 3
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement {continved)

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achleved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good velue for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including
benchmarking dota where available.

The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for maney during the year by:

e The school has seen cleor improvements In its culture and overdll learning climate during the year. Internal truancy
has significantly decreased as ¢ result of clecrly defined standards ond rautines that are now embedded and
consistently adhered to. Steff and pupils have both commented positively on the strengthened culture, Increased
strictness and consistent approach, noting that it has created a calmer, safer and more purposeful environment for
learning. This improvement is closely linked to the schools sustained focus on traumao informed practice,
underpinned by extensive research and training.

s Separotely, the school has spent considerable time researching and designing on internal alternative provision. The
Bridge has now been built, opening cn 18 November 2025, providing a purpose-built space to support pupils who
struggle in mainstream settings. It offers toilored small~group learning, structured interventions, and pastoral
support, ensuring that pupils can engage effectively with their education and thot scheol resources are used
efficientiy and impactfully.

« FEducational outcomes have also shown improvement compared with Summer 2024 in several subject areas. At KS3
the school's fecus on high-quelity formative assessment is already having a clear impact, as shown by improved GL
Assessment results across yeor groups. Teachers continue to refine and use formative strategies 1o identify
misconceptions, address gaps in knowledge, and extend pupils’ understonding. This approach is helping to
consolidate long-term learning and provides a strong foundation on which the school can continue to build
throughout the new academic year.

» Reviewing controls and managing risks - monthly accounts are produced by the Business Director which results in
action being taken to address any significant variances that may have arisen and that are likely to have o negative
impact on budget cut turn. Spend was carefully monitored and expenditure challenged as necessary.

« Al purchase decisions considered the best value principles of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. All orders
were finalised by finance staff who re directed orders to the most appropriate supplier. Service Level Agreements
and contracts are reviewed annually and benchmarked,

¢ Summer works delivered a pregramme of internat improvements to enhance the visual impact in school, including:
°  Several classrooms and corrider areas repainted
*  wall art displays around the site
°  improvements to grounds - steps and paving stones
¢ Additional outdoor crea created for use near upper canteen
°  New blinds and flooring installed in several areas
¢ Refurbishment of 2 science labs
°  Continuved investment in replacement IT laptops and werkstations to support teaching end learning.

°  Refurbishment of staff tollets in upper building
¢ Refurbishment of hall seating
©  Modular classroom provision commenced for the alternative provision facility.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable leve! rather than to elimingte ali risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable ond not absclute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongeing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
1o the achievement of acodemy trust policies, aims ond objectives, to evaluote the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, ond to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in piace in The Bolton Multi Academy Trust for the year 1 September 2024 to 31
August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and comgliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of the
view that there is a formal engoing process for identifying, evalucting and managing the Academy Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up to the dote of approval of the
onnual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial controt is based on a framework of regular management informaticen
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and ¢ system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systerns with an cnnual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Resources and Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to buu-in an internal audit service from DJH Mitten Clarke (previously known os
Haines wWatts.)

The internal auditor's role will be led by the risk end audit committee and include giving advice on financial and cther
matters and performing a range of checks on the ocademy trust’s financial and other systems.

In particular, the checks carried out during the year were covered

. testing of poyroll systems

. testing of purchase systems

. testing of control account/ bank reconciliations

. testing of ad hoc creos by request of the Risk and Audit Committee
. policy, website and statutory compliance

The auditers' role includes giving advice on flnancial matters and performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's
fingncial sustems. in particular the checks carried out in the current pericd covered the following areas: Risk
Management, (T Cyber and GDPR + Data Protection. Each term has a different focus, including checks on statutory

Page 20



Docusign Envelope ID: CB28DESC-FC80-47C9-BD69-0BDODBFC2ES3

The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and contro! framework (continued)
compliance.

On o termly basis, the reviewer reports to the Boord of Trustees through the audit and risk cormmittee on the aperation
of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financicl responsibilities.

The quditors have delivered their schedule of work as planned. No material control issues have been identified.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Trust CEQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in guestion the review has been informed by:

. on discharge of the finagncial decisions to help the committee consider the actions and assess year on year
progress;

- the work of the internal auditors;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal contro! framewark.

. the work of the external cuditors;

. personal visits by the CEQ and Committee Chairs.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the audit and risk committee cnd a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system

is in place.
Concilusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf bu:

DocuSigned by: DacuSigned by:
4 aud, H’OMQI’MJSOUL [C DLUVSL

E24E2004861F495_ B1FSOOFTFFC2426 ..
P E Hodgkinson C Dewse

Chalr of Trustees Accounting Officer
Date: 11 December 2025
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The Boiton Muiti Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Complionce

As accounting officer of The Bolion Multi Academy Trust, | confirm that | have had due regard to the framework of
authorities governing regularity, propriety and compliance, including the trust's funding agreement with DfE, and the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbock, including responsibilities for estates safety and management. | have
also censidered my responsipility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and DIE of material Irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of ail funding, including for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any rmaterial irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the framework of authorities.

| confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance discovered to date. If ony
instances cre identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and DfE:

During the year, the get information about school's register was incerrectly updated to remove a member who wished
to resign from their position, However, due to the Trust only having 3 members the Trust wos unable to accept the
resignation without finding o replacement member. Therefore, the member remained a member of the Trust although,
the register was not updated in line with the requirements in the Academy Trust Handbock, this has since been

amended.

DocuSigned by:

{ Duwse

BiFSBOFTFFC2429...
C Dewse

Accounting Officer
Date: 11 December 2025
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guaraontee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees (who are also the direciors of the charitable company for the purposes of company fow) are responsitle
for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial staternents in cccordonce with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standerds (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable low and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under compony law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of offairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that peried. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select svitable accounting policies and then opply them consistently;

. chserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foilowed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial stotements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable compaony will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping cdequate accounting records that ore sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy ot any time the financial pesition of the
charitable company ond enable them tc ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the ossets of the charitable company and hence for taking recsonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustess are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements moy differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
EML thodplinson.

E24E2094B61F495..
P E Hodgkinson
Chair of Trustees
Date: 11 December 2025
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

Opinicn

We have cudited the financial statements of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust (the *academy trust’) for the yeor ended 31
August 2025 which comprise the Stotement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes, including o summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), inchuding Finencial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued
by the Department for Education.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs os at 31 August 2025 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019

and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Depariment for Education.

Basis for opinion

we conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the cudit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial stetements in the United Kingdom, including the Financlal
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in gccordance with these
requirements. wWe believe thot the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
cur opinion.

Emphasis of matter - financial statements prepared on o basis other than going concern

we draw attention to note 12 in the financial statements, which indicates that the academy trust transferred its
activities, assets and ligbilties to The Bolton Impact Trust on 1 September 2025 and therefore the trustees do not
consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern bosis of accounting in preporing the finencial statements,
Accordingly, these financial statements hove been prepared on a basis other than going concern as describled in note
1.2. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the finoncial statements to the Members of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial stetements and
our Auditors' Report therecn. The Trustees ore responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not exprass any form of assurence conclusion thereon. Our respensibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financia! statements or our knowledge obtainad in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears te be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to & material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required o repert that

fact.
we have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which the financicl stoiements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legel requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment cbtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report.

we have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by low are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(continued)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
Acodemy Trust for the purposes of company low) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements ond
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to encbie the preparction of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the finoncial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disciosing, as opplicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do sc.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the oudit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o cbtein reasonable assurance obout whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material risstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ond to issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK} will alwaus detect ¢ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered maoterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined obove, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of moteriol risstatement in respect of irregularities, including froud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

« the senior statutory ouditor ensured that the engagement team: collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-comgliance with applicable lows and
regulations;

s we identified the laws ond regulations appiicable to the company through discussions with directors and
cther management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the academy sactor,

+ we focused on specific laws and reguiations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial
statements or the operations of the company, including the financicl reporting legislation,

Companies Act 2006, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and heclth and
safety legislation;

e we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of monagement and inspecting legal correspondence; and

» identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the cudit.
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The Bolton Muiti Acodemy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust
(continved)

We assessed the susceptibiiity of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, inctuding obtaining on
understanding of how froud might cccur, by:

« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
know!ledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud, and

s considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through menagement bias and override of controls, we:

+ performed analyticol procedures to identify any unusuol or unexpected relationships;

» tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

+  assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in
Note 2 were indicative of potential bias; and

+ investigated the rationaie behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
inciuded, but were not limited to:

s agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

+ reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» enquiring of monagement as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

e reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the cormpany's legal advisors.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, inciuding those
leading to o material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or reguiation is removed from the events and transactions refiected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is aiso greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as froud invoives intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misregresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reperting
Council's website at. www.frc.org.uk/guditorsresponsibilities. This descriptien forms part of our Auditors’ Report.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
{continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as @ body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in cn Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone other than the Acadermny Trust and its members,
as a body, for our qudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

N . S

Jonathan Dudleuy (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Suite 2, Alpion House
2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Lone

Etruria

Stoke on Trent
ST15RC

11 December 2025
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The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Bolton Multi Academy Trust and the
Secretary of Stote for Education

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter doted 22 October 2025 and further to the requirements of the
Department for Education (DfE) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for Externcl Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Acodemy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about
whether anything has come tc our attention that weould suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and
income received by The Bolton Multi Acaderny Trust during the year 1 September. 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been
applied 1o the purposes identified by Parlicment and thet the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Bolten Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education in accordance
with the terms of sur engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Boiton Multi
Academy Trust and the Secretary of Stote for Educction those matters we are required to state in o report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
The Bolton Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Bolton Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The cccounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Bolton Multi Acodemy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Educotion dated 23 December 2013 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2024, for ensuring thot expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engegement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance end
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
extont Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 tc 2025 We
report to you whether anything hes come to cur attention in carrying out our work which suggests thot in all materic
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not confarm to the autharities
which govern them.

Approach

we conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for Externcl Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DfE. We performed o limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The cobjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient oppropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagement and conseguently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonabie assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to The Belton Multi Academy Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education

Conclusion

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 1o 31 August 2025
has not been applied to purposes intended by Perliament end the financial transactions do not conform to the

authorities which govern them.

During the year, the get information abeut school's register was incorrectly updated to remove a member who wished
to resign from their position, However, due to the Trust only having 3 members the Trust was unable to accept the
resignation without finding o replacemenit member. Therefore, the member remained a member of the Trust although,
the register was not updated in line with the requirements in the Academy Trust Handbook, this has since been

amended.

W Pro-sdu \J\‘%\J\\\vcaé\

Dains Audit Limited

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Vitlage
Forge Lane

Etruria

Stoke on Trent
S$T15RQ

Date: 11 December 2025
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Compony Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financiol activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
Note £ £ £ £ £
income from:
Denations and capital

grants 3 - - (32,637) (32,637) 22,605

Other trading activities 5 197,765 21,377 - 409,142 436,538
Investments 6 12,574 10,000 - 22,574 254
Charitable activities 4 346,041 10,131,266 - 10,477,307 9,850,837
Total income 556,380 10,352,643 (32,637) 10,876,386 10,310,234
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 8 90,154 162,074 - 252,228 248,355
Charitable activities 9 377,589 9,605,528 639,179 10,622,296 9,553,263
Total expenditure 467,743 9,767,602 639,179 10,874,524 9,801,618
Net income/

(expenditure) 88,637 585,041 (671,816) 1,862 508,616
Transfers between funds 20 - (736,737) 736,737 - -
Net movement in funds

before other

recognised

gains/(losses) 88,637 (151,696) 64,921 1.862 508,616
Other recognised

gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains on

defined benefit pension

schemes 28 - 1,552,000 - 1,552,000 328,000
Pension surplus not

recognised 28 - (1,456,000) - (1,456,000) (254,000}
Net movement in funds 88,637 (55,696) 64,921 97.862 582,616
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The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financiol activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) (continued)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
Note £ £ £ £ £
Reconcitiation of funds:
Total funds brought
forward 549,023 1,560,481 9,656,669 1,766,173 11,183,557
Net movement in funds 88,637 (55,696) 64,921 97,862 582,616
Total funds carried
forward 637,660 1,504,785 9,721,590 11,864,035 1,766,173

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains ond losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 36 to 71 form part of these finoncial statements.

Page 32



Docusign Envelope 1D: CB29DEGC-FC80-47CS-BDE3-0BDODBFC2ES3

The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 08718062

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2025

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liahilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
one year

Net assets excluding pension asset

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricted income funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

15

16
17

19

20
20

20
20

27,373
367,622
2,273,719

2,668,714

{491,587}

9,721,590
1,504,785

2025
£
9,697,509
9,697,509

34,105

374567

2529163

2,937.835

(814,707
2,177,127
11,874,636
(10,601)

11,864,035
11,864,035

9,656,669

1560,481
11,226,375
637,660
11,864,035

2024

9,656,669

9.656,669

2123134

11,779,803

(13,6300

11,766,173

11,766,173

1,217,150
549,023

1,766,173
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 08718062

Balaence Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2025

The financial statements on pages 3110 71 were approved and autherised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on
their behalf, by:

DocuSigned by:
Paul, koig&iwwm
E24E2094B81F495...
P E Hodgkinson
Chair of Trustees
Date: 11 December 2025

The notes on pages 36 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing octivities

Cash flows from finoncing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 36 to 71 form part of these financial statements

Note

22

24

23

25,26

2025 2024

£ £
383,373 1,235,636
(635,788) (615.857)
(3,029) (3.029)
(255,444) 616,750
2,529,163 1,912,413
2,273,719 2,529,163
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financiai Statements
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

T Accounting policies

11

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimotion uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financiol statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, hove been
prepared under the histeric cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Cherities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financiol
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK ond Repubslic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by DfE the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act

2006.

The Bolton Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

Foliowing approval from the Secretary of State for Education, on 1 September 2025 the school within The
Bolton Multi Academy Trust formally joined The Bolton impact Trust, a trust incorperated in England and
wales. On the same day, the octivities, assets and liabilities of The Bolton Multi Acaderny Trust were
transferred to The Bolton Impact Trust and this academy trust became dormant. These financial
statements have therefore been prepared on a basis other than going concern. No adjustments to the
carrying value of the assets and licbilities, prior to the transfer, were required as a result of this basis of

preparation.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

1.4

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Gronts are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on o receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Bolance Sheet. Where income Is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditicnal entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the yeor is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
omounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the

Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a trensfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be meosured reliably. Expenditure is clossified by cctivity. The costs of each activity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs invelved in undertaking
each octivity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are aliocated directly to that activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more then one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity
are apportioned between those activities on o basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs
are aillocated on the basis of time spent, end depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s
use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apporticned to charitable activities.
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The Boiton Muiti Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

1.6

Expenditure (continued)
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Parograph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corperation tGx purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potenticlly exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 1, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Goins Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exciusively
to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed ossets

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

where tongible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet ot cost and deprecioted over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants ore credited 1o o restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financiol Activities and carried forward in the Balence Sheet. Depreciction on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on il tangible fixed assets other than freehold land ond assets under construction,
at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as
follows:
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed ossets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leaseheld lond - 125 years straight line
Leasehcld property - 50 yeaors straight line
Leaseheld property improvements- 10 years straight line
Furniture and equipment - 5 yecrs straight line
Plant and machinery - 5 years straight line
Computer eguipment - 5 years straight line
Motor vehicles - 5 years straight line
Assets under construction - not depreciated

The long term leasehold lond ond buildings within the accounts relate to the academy trust's premises
which were donated 1o the acadermy on conversion on a 125 year lease from the Borough Council of Bolton.
The lzasehold land and buildings were valued using ESFA valuation. These are being depreciated in
accordance with the depreciation policies set out above. No annual charge is made for the use of the fand
and buildings under the terms of the lease.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shertfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks

Stocks are vaiued at the lower of cost ond net reclisoble value ofter making due allowance for obsclete and
slow-moving stocks.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors cre recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due,

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highiy liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or ogpening of the deposit or similar account.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Liabilities

11

112

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation ot the Balance Sheet date os a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, ond the amount of the
setflement can be estimated reliably. Liabllities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust
anticipates it wili pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are os follows:

Financial assets - trade gnd other debtors are basic financial instruments ond are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic fingncial instrument and is measured at face valve.

Firancial ligbilities - trode creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at omortised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cosh settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash
or another financial instrument.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies (continved)

113

114

Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension costis a substanticlly level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quodrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Cansequently, the TPS is
treated os a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme ond the ossets are held sepcorately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at foir value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted ot
o rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities, The actuarial valuations are optained at least triennially and are updated at each
Balance Sheet dote. The amounts charged to cperating surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liobility/asset is clso recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised geins and

losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Acodemy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed osset funds are resocurces which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
the funders where the asset acguired or created Is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include gronts frem the Department for Education Group.
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The Bolton Mutti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continuclly eveluated and ore based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reosonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldem equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
hove ¢ significant risk of cousing a maoterial adjustment to the cerrying emounts of assets ond liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

Leasehold land and buildings

The long term leasehold land and buildings within the accounts relate to the academy trust's premises which
were donated to the academy on conversion on a 125 yeor lease from the Borough Council of Bolton. The
leasehold land and buildings were valued using DE valuation. These are being deprecicted in accordance with
the depreciation policies set out above. No annual charge is made for the use of the land and buildings under the
terms of the lease.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actugrial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes In these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the lotest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2025. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and ¢ full actuarial valuation wouwid impact on the carrying amount of

the pension liability.
Critical areas of judgment:

An entity shall recognise o plan surplus as a defined benefit plon asset only to the extent that 1t s able to recover
the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. The trust is
expected to porticipate in the LGPS indefinitely and therefore do not believe there is any entitiement to a refund.
The trust has also instructed the pension actuary to calculote an asset ceiling report to calculate the estimated
economic benefit available as a reduction in future contributions, which shows a £Nil value. Management have
therefore not recognised the total pension surplus of £1,710,00C in the finoncial statements, and the movement in
the pension surplus of £1,456,000 has also not been recognised in the yeor.
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

3. Income from donations and capital grants

Capital Grants

Total 2025

Total 2024

Restricted

fixed qsset Total Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2024
£ £ £
{32,637} (32,637) 22,605
(32,637 (32,637 22,605

22,605 22,605
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guoarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

4. Funding for the Academy’s educaticnal operations
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2023
£ £ £ £
Educational operations
DfE grants
General Annual Grant - 8,786,800 8,786,800 7,808,975
Other DfE grants
Pupil premium - 526,652 526,652 500112
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 337,078 337,078 371,886
MSAG/Supplementary grant - - - 273,593
Core schools budget grant - 319.645 319,645 -
- - 9,970,175 8,954,566
Other Government grants
Locel authority grants - 139,161 139,161 389,015
Other Government - Turing Scheme - - - 85,086
Other income from the Academy Troust's
educational operations 346,041 21,930 367,971 422170
Total 2025 346,041 10,131,266 10,477,307 9,850,837
Total 2024 383,157 9,467,680 9,850,837

The Turing Scheme offers education providers the opportunity to apply for funding to support thelr students with
study and work placements around the world. Funding through the Turing Scheme allows education providers to
give their students the opportunity to:

. develop their skilis
. gain international experience
. boost their employability
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

5. income from other trading activities

Sports centre
Other income

Recharges

Totai 2025

Total 2024

6. Investment income

Investment income

Pensicon income

Total 2025

Total 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
- 211,377 21,377 212,258
85,060 - 85,060 78,689
112,705 - 112,708 145591
197,765 21,377 409,142 436,538
224,280 212,258 436,538
Unrestricted Restricted Total Tetal
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
12,574 - 12,574 254
- 10,000 10,000 -
12,574 10,000 22,574 254
254 - 254
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

7. Expenditure

Expenditure on raising voluntary
income:;

Direct costs

Educationat operctions:
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Total 2025

Total 2024

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total

2025 2025 2025 2025 2024

£ £ £ £ £

162,432 62,233 27563 252,228 248355

6,996,215 - 1,492,372 8,488,587 7.336,665

826,568 311,386 995,755 2,133,709 2,216,598

7,985 215 373,619 2,515,650 10,874,524 9,801,618
6,919,158 411,513 2470947 9801618
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

8. Costs of raising funds

Sports centre running costs
Cleaning costs

Uniform

Sports centre - weges and salaries
Sports centre - NI

Sports centre - pension costs

Total 2025

Total 2024

9. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational operations

Total 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2028 2024
£ £ £ £
- (358) (358) (5.418)
62,59 - 62,591 72,414
27,563 - 27,563 23,238
- 127,005 127,005 126,248
- 12,453 12,453 10,229
- 22974 22,974 21,644
90,154 162,074 252,228 248,355
95,652 152,703 248355
Activities
vndertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
8,488,587 2,133,709 10,622,296 3,553,263
7.336,665 2,216,598 9,553,263
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

9. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Stoff development and other staff costs
Technology costs

Consultancy

Other cests

Recruitment and other staff expenses

Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024

£ £
6,996,215 6,029,013
639,179 550,549
412,704 286,991
110,081 82,052
6,437 3,391
183,283 167,221
39,210 41,836
60,281 146,251
41,197 29,561
8,488,587 7,336,665
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

9, Anaiysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs

Staff costs

Catering

Staff development and other staff costs
Other costs

Maintenance of premises and special facilities
Cleaning and caretaking

Security

Energy

Legal and professicnal

Audit and accountancy

Other premises costs

10.  Netincome/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:
- audit

- other services

Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024

£ £

- 5,000
826,568 732,024
376,034 389,626
7,806 5,048
154,726 151,991
237,446 246,309
223,538 199172
2,867 4,541
195,351 351,907
2174 3484
29,977 29,288
77,222 98,208
2,133,709 2,216,598
2025 2024

£ £
637,699 550,549
16,125 15,000
7,650 6.250
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1.

Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

b. Special staff severance payments

2025 2024
£ £
5,570,029 5,007,994
643,785 518,980
1,475,585 1,097,918
7,689,399 6,624,852
284,436 294,266
11,380 -
7,985,215 6,919158
2025 2024
£ £
11,380 -
11,380 -

Included in staff restructuring costs is a special severance pagment of £Nil (2024: £Nil).
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1. Stoff (continued)

¢. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2025 2024

No. No.

Teachers 63 62
Support staff 86 80
Management 10 10
159 152

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WQs:

2025 2024

No. No.

tn the band £60,001 - £70,000 10 10
fn the band £70,001 - £80,000 5 -

tn the band £80,001 - £50,000 2 2

fn the band £90,001 - £100,000 - 1

fn the bang £100.001 - £110,000 1 -

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their
services to the Academy Trust was £491,085 (2024 - £440,999).
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

12.

13.

14.

Central services

The Academy Trust has pravided the following centrol services ta its academies during the year:

. Educational support services
. Financial services

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
A 1% charge is levied on GAG income (excluding rates income) (2024 - 1%).

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2025
Smithills School 88,121
Trustees' remuneration and expenses

During the year, no Trustees received any remuneraticn or other benefits (2024 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2025, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2024 - £NIL).

Trustees’ and Officers’ insurance

2024

78,761

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchaosed insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on acedemy
business. The Insurance provides cover up to £25,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31
August 2025 was included as part of o larger insurance package and no breckdown for this cover is provided.
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Docusign Envelope ID: CB29DE6C-FC80-47C8-BD69-0BDODBFC2ES3

The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

16.  Stocks

Finished goods and goods for resale

17. Debtors

Due within one yeor

Trade debtors

QOther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recoverable

18. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Leans
Trade creditors
Other creditors

Accrucls and deferred income

2025 2024

£ £
27,373 34305
2025 2024

£ £

9,494 35,771

- 7,130
233,002 234324
125,126 97342
367,622 374,567
2025 2024

£ £

3,029 3,029

- 442,269
4,177 408
484,381 368,995
491,587 814,701

Loans consist of £3.029 (2024 - £3,029) from Salix Finance which is interest free and repayable over 5 years

commencing July 2022,
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

19. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2025 2024
£ £

Loans 10,601 13,630

Loans consist of £10,601 (2023 - £13,630) from Salix Finance which is interest free and repayable over 5 years
commencing July 2022,

included within the above are amounts falling due as follows:

2025 2024

Between one and two years

Loans 3,029 3,029

Between two and five years
Loans 7,572 9,087

Over five years

Loans - 1,514
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 Avugust 2025

20. Statement of funds

Balance ot 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2024 Income Expenditure in/out {Losses) August 2025
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 549,023 556,380 (467,743) - - 637,660
Restricted
general funds
General Annuat
Gront 890,187 8,786,800 (7,717,389} (736,737) - 1,222,861
Pupil Premium - 526,652 (526,652) - - -
Other DE/ESFA - 337,078 (337,078} - - -
Core schools
budget grant - 319,645 (319,645) - - -
MSAG /
Supplementary
Grant 595,861 - (387,590) - - 208,271
Other
government
grants - 139,161 (139,161) - - -
Trip income 17,124 21,930 (21,348) - - 17,706
Other restricted
income 57,309 1,377 (212,739} - - 55,947
Pension reserve - 10,000 (106,000) - 96,000 -
1,560,481 10,352,643 (9,767,602) (736,737) 26,000 1,504,785
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The Bolton Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

20. Stotement of funds (continued)

Balance at1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2024 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) August 2025
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Devolved formulo
capital 176,879 24,081 (40,032) - - 160,928
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 656,836 - (223,398) 680,019 - 1,115,457
Donated assets
on conversion 7,436,085 - (166,264) - - 7,269,821
Cendition
improvement
fund 1,297,634 (56,718) (169,561) 56,718 - 1,128,073
Qther capital
grants 61,046 - (26,234) - - 34,812
Capital
expenditure
from
unresticted 8,824 - (2,543) - - 6,281
Other donated
Q55615 8,862 - {8,852) - - 10
Capital
expenditure
from restricted
funds 10,503 - (2,295) - - 8,208
9,656,669 (32,637) (639,179) 736,737 - 9,721,590
Total Restricted
funds 1,217,150 10,320,006 (10,406,781} - 96,000 11,226,375
Total funds 11,766,173 10,876,386  (10,874,524) - 96,000 11,864,035
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

20. Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are 1o be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds
This fund represents those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the

Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted general funds
The restricted general funds represents grants received for the Academy Trust's operational activities and

development , restricted trip income and other restricted income.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve represents the Academy Trust's share of the pension fability arising on the LGPS pension

fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds
The restricted fixed asset fund relotes to grant funding received from the DfE 1o carry out works of a copital
nature, capital expenditure from GAG, and olso donation of the assets from the local authority on conversion.
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The Boiton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

20. Siatement of funds (continued)

Comparative infermation in respect of the prececing year is as follows:

Balance at Belance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 461106 607,691 (506,274) (13,500) - 549,023
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant 783,581 7.8085875 (7,143,098) (559,271) - 890,187
Pupil Premium - 500M2 (500,112 - - -
Other DIE/ESFA 113,997 230,071 (230,071) (113,997 - -
National Tutoring 28,000 10,439 (38.439) - - -
Recovery
Premium - 131376 (131376) - - -
MSAG /
Supplementary
Grant 208,21 273593 - 113,697 - 585,861
Cther
government
grants - 389,015 {389,015) - - -
Trip income 23,291 32513 (38,680) - - 17,124
Other restricted
income 57.823 303,844 (293.004) (11.354) - 57,309
Penslon reserve (93,000 - 19,600 - 74,000 -
1,121,963 9,679,938 (8,744,795) {570,625) 74,000 1,560,481
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The Boiton Muiti Acaodemy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

20.  Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Devalved formula
capital 180,737 22,605 (26,463) - - 176,879
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 243 961 - (146,396) 559,271 - 656,836
Donated assets
on conversion 7,602,345 - (166,264) - - 7.436,085
Condition
improvement
fund 1,467,195 - (16%9,567) - - 1,297,634
Other capital
grants 90,665 - (29,619) - - 61,046
Capital
expenditure
from
unresticted (2.133) - (2,543) 13,500 - 8,824
Other dengted
assets 17,714 - (8,852) - - 8,862
Capital
expenditure
from restricted
funds - - (851) 11,354 - 10,503
9,600,488 22,605 (550,549} 584,125 - 9.656,669
Total Restricted
funds 10,722,451 9,702,543 (9.295,344) 13,500 74,000 1,217,150
Total funds 11,183,557 10,310,234 (9,801,618) - 74,000 1,766,173
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

20.

Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated cs follows:

2025 2024
£ £
Smithills School 2,066,492 2,073,047
Central Services 75,953 36,457
Totai before fixed asset funds ond pension reserve 2,142 445 2,109,504
Restricted fixed asset fund 9,721,590 9,656,669
Total 11,864,035 11,766,173
Totoi cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and
educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff  Educational excluding Total Total
costs costs supplies depreciation 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Smithills School 6,890,215 989,000 412,704 1,788,638 10,080,557 8,178,270
Central Services - - - 48,788 48,788 91,799
Academy Trust 6,890,215 989,000 412,704 1837426 10,129,345 9,270,069
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{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

21 Anclysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Creditors due within one year

Creditors due in more than cne year

Total

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Creditors due within one year

Creditors due in more than one year

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025
£ £ £ £
- - 9697509 9,697,509
659,024 1,985,609 24,081 2,668,714
(21.364) (470.223) - (491,587)
- (10.601) - {10,601
637,660 1,504,785 9721590 11,864,035
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£ £ £ £
- - 9,656,669 9,656,669
549,023 2,388,812 - 2,937,835
- (814,701 - (814,707
- (13,630 - {13,630)
549,023 1,560.481 9,656,669 11,766,173
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Notes o the Financial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

22. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants frem DfE and other capitat income

interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Increase In debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

25, ¢ash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in financing activities

2025 2024
£ £
1,862 508,616
639,179 550,549
32,637 (22,605)
(12,574) (254)
106,000 (24,000)
{10,000} 5000
6,732 (M,697)
{57,349) (36,957
(323,114) 266,584
383,373 1.235,636
2025 2024
£ £
(3,029} {3.029)
(3,029) {3,029
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The Bolton Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

24.  Cash flows from investing activities

2025 2024

£ £

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 12,574 254
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (excluding donated assets) (680,019) (660,808)
Receipt of capital grants from DfE Group 31,657 44,697
Net cash used in investing activities (635,788) (615,857)

25.  Analysis of cosh and cash equivalents

2025 2024

£ £

Cash in hand and ot benk 2,273,119 2,529,163

Totai cash and cash equivalents 2,273,719 2,529,163

26.  Analysis of changes in net debt
At1

September Other non- At 31 August

2024 Cash flows cash changes 2025

£ £ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand 2,529,163 (255,444} . 2,273,719
Debt due within 1year (3,029) 3,029 (3,029) (3,029

Debt due after 1year {13,630} - 3,029 (10,601
2,512,504 (252,415) - 2,260,089
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The Boiton Muiti Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

27.

28,

Capital commitments

2025 2024
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financicl statements
Construction of tangible fixed assets 721,033 -

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council . Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial vaivation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022

There were no outstanding of prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Tedachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is ¢ statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, goverrned by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is avtomatic for full-time teachers in ccademies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - thase contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by

public funds provided by Parliament.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yedar Ended 31 August 2025

28,

Pension commitments (continued)
vatuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuerial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent an assumptions about the velue of future costs, design of benefits
and manry other factors. The latest octuaricl valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
vaiugtion report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by
HMT, appluing a notional investment return based on 17% above the rate of CPL The key elements of the
velugation cutcome are:

. employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% administration levy). This
is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in

member benefits is needed.

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment cnd the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,100 million and notfional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notianal
past service deficit of £39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024 The next vaoluation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,114,000 (2024 - £783,000).

A copy of the valuatien report ond supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website
(https.//www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx}.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy
trust has taken odvantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as
if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the

scheme.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

28, Pension commitments (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is o funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contripution made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was £472,000 (2024 - £407,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £362,000 (2024 - £315000) and employees’ contributions totalled £110,000
(2024 - £52,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23 per cent for employers and 55-12.5 per

cent for employees.

As described in note 2 the LGPS obligation reiates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were the
employees transferred as port of the conversion from the meintained schoo! and new employees who were
eligile to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obiigation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represemnts their cumulctive service at both the predecessor school and the Academy Trust at the

balance sheet date.

Farliament has ogreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a gucrantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities wouid be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education

reoffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2025

%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.5
Rate of increase for pensions In payment/inflation 2.7
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 6.05
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.7
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50

2024
%

345
2.65
5.0
265
30

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future improvements in mortaiity rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2025
Years
Retiring today
Males 19.3
Femailes 242
Retiring in 20 years
Males 20.2
Females 25.1

2024
Years

190
242

200
251
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28. Pension commitments {continued)

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations

Discount rate -0.1%

Discount rate +0.1%

Salary increase rate -0.1%

Salary increase rate +0.1%

Mortality cssumption - 1 year decrease
Mortality cssumption - 1 year increase
CPl rate -0.1%

CPl rate +0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Corporote bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £348,000 (2024 - £502,000).

2025 2024
£000 £000

130 151
(130} (151)
(10) an

10 n
(263) (286)

263 286
124) (143)

124 143

At 31 August At 31 August
2025 2024

£ £
5,390,000 5116,000
1,410,000 1,112,000
746,000 593,000
746,000 593,000
8,292,000 7,414,0C0
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Notes to the Fingncial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

28. Pension commitments (continuved)

The amounts recognised in the Stetement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Stotement of Financial Activities

Changes in the present vaive of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost

Empioyee contributions
Actuarial gains
Benefits paid

Past service costs

At 31 August

2025 2024
£ £
(342,000) (286,000)
(126,000) (5.000)
378,000 346,000
(368,000) (351,000)
(458,000) (296,000)
2025 2024
£ £
7,160,000 6,627,000
342,000 286,000
368,000 351,000
110,000 92,000
(1,362,000) (50,000)
(162,000) (151,000)
126,000 5,000
6,582,000 7,160,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the foir value of the Academy Trust's shore of scheme assets were as follows:

2025 2024
£ £

At 1 September 7,414,000 6,534,000

Interest income 378,000 346,000
Actuarial gains 190,000 278,000
Employer contributions 362,000 315,000
Employee contributions 10,000 92,000
Benefits paid (162,000) (151,000}
At 31 August 8,292,000 7.414,000

At 31 August 2025, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) managed by Tameside Metropolitan Borough
Council had a pension asset of 1,710,000 which has not been recognised in the financial statements,

29.  Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is o member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and licbilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a

member.

30.  Related party transactions

Owing 1o the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from locat
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the DfE of all transactions made on or after 1
April 2019 and obtaining their opproval where reguired, end with the Academy Trust's financial reguiations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

There were no related party transections during the year.

n Post baiance sheet events

Smithills Schoo! transferred to The Bolton Impact Trust on 1 September 2025, (see further information disclosed
in note 1.2)
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